

BYLAWS OF THE ARIZONA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGISTS
Revised November 8, 2005

ARTICLE I – NAME AND OBJECTIVES

1. The name of this organization shall be the Arizona Association of School Psychologists.
2. The general objectives of this organization shall be those set forth in the bylaws of the National Association of School Psychologists and the bylaws of Division 16 of the American Psychological Association.
3. Specifically, the objectives of this organization shall be through practice, education, and research to:
 - Serve the mental health and educational needs of all children and youth,
 - Encourage and provide opportunities for the professional growth of individual members,
 - Inform the public about the services and practice of school psychology,
 - Advance the ethics and standards of the profession of school psychology.

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP

1. Requirements for Admission to Full Membership as administered by the Executive Board:
 - a. Persons who serve in public or private schools or agencies of Arizona and have proper credentials for school psychologist and are actively engaged in school psychological services or persons who are engaged in private practice or in a professional field closely allied with school psychological services. A school psychologist is defined as a psychologist whose work is largely concerned with the application of psychological techniques to children and adolescents in schools. Closely allied with school psychological services are major research, teaching, professional practice, or administrative functions directly and specifically related to the work of school psychologists.
 - b. Arizona State certification in school psychology.
2. Requirements for Admission to Associate Membership:
 - a. Demonstrated professional interest in the field of school psychology. (including student members.)
3. Requirements for Admission to Retired Membership:

- a. Persons holding regular membership for at least five consecutive years who have retired from remunerative professional activity.
4. Requirements for Admission to Honorary Membership:
 - a. The Executive Board may confer Honorary Membership upon an individual who has made a major contribution in allied fields or whose major and professional work is directly related to the work and interest of school psychologists.
 5. Requirements for Admission to Student Affiliate Membership:
 - a. Actively enrolled in a school psychology training program at least one-half time or a minimum of six semester hours or its equivalent per semester.
 - b. Student membership status is granted for no more than five years, requires annual verification, and is not granted to any person employed full-time.
 6. Membership dues shall consist of those amounts established each year by the Executive Board. Once established by the Executive Board, an assessment shall remain in force each subsequent year unless modified by the Board. Any member of the Board may initiate a request for such change.
 7. Rights and Privileges of Full Membership:
 - a. Full voting status of all issues brought before the membership.
 - b. The right to hold elected or appointed office.
 8. Rights and Privileges of Associate Membership:
 - a. Participation in all regular and special meetings of the Association and in all activities of the Association with the exceptions of voting and holding office.
 9. Rights and Privileges of Honorary or Lifetime Membership:
 - a. Such membership shall entitle persons to attend all regular and special meetings of the Association and to take part in all activities of the Association with the exception of voting and holding office.

Application for membership in the Association shall be submitted to the Communications Committee. Any applicant for membership shall be required to furnish additional written verification of qualifications for membership. All applications for full, associate and honorary memberships require approval of the Executive Board of the Arizona Association of School Psychologists.

10. A member shall be removed from the Association for conduct which in any way tends to injure the Association or to affect adversely its reputation or is contrary to or destructive of its objectives. Charges of injurious conduct shall not be entertained against a member unless the precise nature of the charges is submitted in writing to the President of the Association. Upon receipt, the President shall refer such charges to the Ethics and Professional Standards Committee for confidential investigation and decision by peers.

The Ethics Committee shall recommend to the Executive Board whether the accused shall be expelled from the Association, whether the charges shall be dropped, or whether other appropriate action will be taken.

- a. Whenever charges are referred to the Ethics and Professional Standards Committee, the accused person shall have the opportunity to be heard by the Executive Board. A vote of the Executive Board shall be required in order for decided action to be taken. Executive Board decisions are final.

ARTICLE III-OFFICERS AND REGIONAL DIRECTORS

1. Officers

- a. The officers of the Association shall be President, Past President, President-Elect, Secretary, and Treasurer.
- b. It is the duty of the officers to lead the organization by participating in policy formation with the Regional Directors and to implement the policy by monitoring committee activities and progress toward their established goals.
- c. The President exercises, but is not limited to, the following powers: serves as the major spokesperson for the Association and represents its positions and policies; serves as the chairperson of the Executive Board; oversees the activities and is ex-officio member of the Association's committees.
- d. The President-Elect serves as the chairperson of the Executive Board in the President's absence. The President-Elect works closely with the committee chairs, and with other activities that will occur during the President-Elect's term of office.
- e. The Secretary is responsible for ensuring the accurate recording of the proceedings of all official records and for ensuring that policies and procedures are kept implemented. The Secretary reviews initiatives from meeting to meeting to determine if charges and activities were completed. The Secretary shall be a member of the Association elected for a term of two (2) years. During that term, the Secretary shall be a member and the secretary of the Executive Board, with the right to vote; shall safeguard all records of the Association; shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Board and Executive Committee; shall issue calls and notices of meetings; shall keep and maintain a book of extant policies of the Association based upon activities of the Board, and shall perform all other usual and customary duties of a secretary.
- f. The Treasurer performs an advisory role to the President and Executive Board on fiscal matters and in the development of the budget. The Treasurer is responsible for overseeing that all Association monies are managed in accord with established financial policies and procedures. The Treasurer advises the Executive Board on budgetary issues and is responsible for submitting the budget to the Executive Board for discussion and approval. The Treasurer shall be a member of the Association elected for a term of two (2) years. During that term, the Treasurer

shall be a member of the Executive Board, with the right to vote; shall oversee custody of all funds and property of the Association, shall direct disbursements as provided under the terms of these bylaws; shall oversee the preparation of an annual budget for consideration and adoption by the Board; shall make an annual financial report to the Association; and in general shall perform the usual and customary duties of a Treasurer.

- g. The Past President serves as the Parliamentarian of the Executive Board. The Past President works with the committee chairs on activities that involve continuation of goals or completion of projects from the previous year. The Past President is responsible for overseeing the nomination and election procedures of the Association.
- h. The President, Past President, and President-Elect shall serve one year terms, while the other officers shall serve for two years. The Secretary shall be elected to take office in the even numbered years, and the Treasurer shall be elected to take office in the odd numbered years. New terms shall begin as of July 1.
- i. In the event that the President shall not serve his/her full term of office for any reason, the President-Elect shall succeed to the unexpired term and continue as President through the following year. Vacancies in other offices shall be filled by a majority vote of the Executive Board.

2. Regional Directors

- a. Two Regional Directors for the northern, western, central, and southern regions shall be nominated and elected by the voting members from their region.
- b. It shall be the responsibility of the Regional Directors to participate in the policy making of the organization and bring recommendations from other members. Further, the Regional Directors shall maintain contact with the members from their region, thus serving to facilitate the flow of information between the Executive Board and its members. Regional Directors shall promote membership growth in their region.
- c. The term of the Office of Regional Director shall be two years; each Director to be elected in alternate years.

3. Qualifications

- a. All officers and Regional Directors shall be active members of the Association at the time of their nomination and continue as members in good standing throughout their tenure.
- b. All officers and Regional Directors shall be primarily employed in the State of Arizona. Upon moving employment from the state, the officer's or director's term shall be terminated immediately.
- c. Officers and Regional Directors shall be nominated and elected to office as per procedures approved by the Executive Board and outlined in the Procedures Manual.

ARTICLE IV – EXECUTIVE BOARD

1. Members

- a. The Executive Board shall consist of the officers of the Association and the Regional Directors. The President shall serve as Chairperson of the Executive Board. The Past President shall serve as Parliamentarian of the Executive Board.
- b. The officers and Regional Directors shall have voting privileges on the Board.
- c. The NASP delegate shall be an Ex-Officio member of the Board. This person shall act as a representative from Arizona to the Delegate Assembly of NASP and will be responsible for adopting and amending policy of NASP.

2. Rules

- a. The Executive Board shall meet regularly during the year at the President's discretion to conduct the affairs of the Association.
- b. A quorum shall be the majority of the members of the Executive Board.
- c. Business of the Executive Board, when expedient, may be conducted by mail or other means, including electronic mail, FAX, or telephone under the discretion of the President. The actions shall be recorded in the final minutes.
- d. Official minutes of the Board meetings shall be distributed to all members of the Board.

ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES

Standing Committees

The committees of the Association shall consist of the standing committees enumerated below. Committee Chairperson/persons and members shall be appointed by the President at the beginning of his or her term with the approval of a majority of the Executive Board. Committee chairs and members of each committee serve at the pleasure of the President and Board. Their terms can be extended beyond one year, or may be terminated at any time, upon request of the President and approval of the majority of the Executive Board. All chairs and members of AASP committees must be members in good standing of AASP.

1. Child and Family Advocacy Committee

The committee shall consist of the Child and Family Advocacy Chairperson or persons and additional members selected by the Chairperson/persons. The primary responsibility of this committee is to promote professional practices and policies that support children and families.

2. Professional Development/ Advancement

This committee shall be chaired by the President Elect and shall include the Past President and President. They shall make arrangements for the program of the annual meeting and any other meetings of the Association. The committee shall consist of the Professional Development/ Advancement Chairperson or persons and additional members selected by the Chairperson/persons. The primary responsibility of this committee is to encourage ongoing professional growth among school psychologists through the provision of opportunities for AASP membership and leaders, through the recognition of individual accomplishment and outstanding contributions to the field of school psychology.

- a. Ethics and Professional Rights and Standards Committee
The committee shall consist of the Professional Development/ Advancement Chairperson or persons and additional members selected by the Chairperson/persons. The primary responsibility of this committee is to develop, disseminate and promote standards as policies of the Association, including but not limited to those relating to credentialing, ethics, school psychological services and training.
 - i. It shall encourage research of certification standards, encourage and promote appropriate certification standards, and will provide guidance to state and local legislative, executive, and administrative bodies as they develop laws, rules, and regulations pursuant to laws which involve school psychologists.
 - ii. This committee will inform members of the Association of current ethical standards and resources.
 - iii. It will investigate referrals for misconduct or unethical behavior of association members given to them by the President of the association and make recommendations to the Executive Board. Members to conduct such investigation shall include the Chairperson/persons of the Ethics and Professional Rights and Standards Committee, and four persons appointed by the President and approved by the Executive Committee.

3. Communication Committee

The committee shall consist of the Communication Chairperson or persons and additional members selected by the Chairperson/persons. The primary responsibility of this committee is to develop and disseminate informational resources to support the work of school psychologists in meeting the needs of children and families.

4. Executive Leadership Committee

The Executive Leadership Committee shall consist of the President, Past President, President-Elect, Secretary, Treasurer and NASP delegate. The primary responsibilities of this committee are to oversee the committees of AASP, develop the agenda for meetings, develop cohesion with NASP, and oversee the annual election process. The Executive Leadership Committee shall meet on the call of the President or any other of the three (3) officers. The duties of the Executive Committee shall be:

- To supervise the affairs of the Association between meetings of the Board, managing those affairs within policies set by the Board and implementing actions directed by the Board.
- To review matters on the agendas of meetings of the Board and to make recommendations about these matters to the Board,
- To negotiate the terms of any contract entered into by and between the Association and any external organizations hired to provide administrative and/or publishing services to the Association with policies set by the Board and to supervise and evaluate the performance of such organizations,
- Upon majority vote of the Executive Leadership Committee, to declare an emergency and hold a mail, email or telephone ballot of the Board upon any proposed course of action it shapes to respond to the matter which constitutes an emergency.

ARTICLE VI – MEETINGS OF THE ASSOCIATION

1. The Association shall hold an annual meeting.
2. The Executive Board may authorize other meetings of the Association.
3. For the purposes of voting on Association matters, motions will be ratified by a majority of members voting at the meeting or by mail ballot as directed by the Executive Board.

ARTICLE VII – FUNDS

1. AASP's fiscal year is July to June 30. The Board shall adopt and follow an annual budget.
2. Membership dues are payable July 1st and become delinquent after October 31st. Dues paid by February 1st shall apply for the remainder of that calendar year as well as for the following calendar year. Late payment of dues by those who have previously been members shall be for the full annual amount.
3. The Executive Board shall disburse Association funds as well as direct its attention to the normal fiscal requirements of the organization. Disbursements not in the annual budget may only be considered and approved by the Executive Board.
4. The Executive Board may cause the funds of the Association handled by all elected and contracted persons to be examined annually or as needed by a qualified person or group.

ARTICLE VIII- AFFILIATION

1. With the approval of the Executive Board and the approval of a majority of the membership, the Association may affiliate with other non-profit organizations of similar purpose.

ARTICLE IX – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

1. When not in conflict with these bylaws, “Roberts’ Rules of Order Revised” shall be the Parliamentary Authority.

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS

1. A proposed amendment to these bylaws shall be accepted for membership vote by:
 - a. A motion at the annual meeting or a special Association meeting.
 - b. Receipt of a petition signed by a minimum of 25% of the Association membership.
2. Voting on proposed amendments shall be by ballots given to members at the annual meeting, at a special Association meeting or through a mail ballot.

ARTICLE XI – AWARDS

1. Recipients of the Administrator of the Year Award, the Keith Perkins Award and the School Psychologist of the Year Award shall be selected by the Professional Development and Advancement Committee, chaired by the Past President. The criteria for the awards and the procedures for selecting the awardees shall be adopted by the Board and outlined in the AASP Procedure Manual.

2. The Professional Development Committee, chaired by the Past President, shall select recipients of the Max Jones Practitioner Research Award and the Ed Arguelwicz Student Research Award. The criteria for the awards and the procedures for selecting the awardees shall be adopted by the Board and outlined in the AASP Procedure Manual.

Nominations for the award recipients will be solicited from the membership.

President’s Award(s) is at the discretion of the President.

Nominations for Psychologist of the Year will be solicited from the membership.

ARTICLE XII – PROCEDURES MANUAL

1. The Association will develop a procedures manual, which will contain specific policies and procedures adopted by the Executive Board to conduct the normal affairs of the Association. It will be the responsibility of the President to keep the manual current. The Executive Board will be responsible for ensuring that the adopted procedures are followed.